
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

REMOTE VIA ZOOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 - Annexation.

2. R. E. Davenport Property Rezoning Request.

3. F & A Construction Rezoning Request.

4. All Dunn Taxicab Franchise Request

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Tax Charges for 2020-2021 Tax Levy.

3. Tax Settlement for 2019-2020.

4. Reimbursement Resolution 20-R-101.

IX. OLD BUSINESS:

1. 2020 Street Improvements Project Engineering Contract Amendment.



 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Pump Station Rehabilitation Project - Capital Project Budget Ordinance 20-CPBO-101. 

XI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 

XII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 

XIII. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
❖ New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
❖ Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
❖ Cemetery (BW) 

XIV. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

1. One-Stop Voting: Thursday, October 15, 2020 – Saturday, October 31, 2020. 

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, October 19, 2020 - 7 pm - Town Hall 
Assembly Room. 

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, October 20, 2020 - 7 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. 

4. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 – 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 

5. Daylight Savings Time Ends: Sunday, November 1, 2020 – 2:00 am. 

6. General Election Day: Tuesday, November 3, 2020 – 6:30 am – 7:30 pm. 

7. Town Offices Closed: Wednesday, November 11, 2020 for the Veteran’s Day Holiday. 

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER. 

XVI. ADJOURN. 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 - Annexation. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, Certificate of Sufficiency, Public 
Hearing Notice, Notification to Adjacent Property Owners, List of Addresses of Adjacent Property Owners, 
and Ordinance 20-O-101. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 9/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner (Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC) of a portion of Parcel 84754 (Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 

and 3) is applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3: 

Location: Worthington Road east of its intersection with Old Tar Road. 

Size: 18.38 Acres. 

Zoned: R-10. 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (8/10/2020). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (9/14/2020). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (10/12/2020). 

 

❖ Adjacent Property owners were notified by mail on September 28, 2020 and notice of the 

public hearing was published in the Daily Reflector on September 30, 2020 and October 7, 

2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

3



4



F
O
R

K
 
S

W
A

M
P
 
C

A
N

A
L

FORK SWAMP CANAL

> BRIDGE AND >

EXISTING MAG NAIL

CHECKED:

 APPROVED:

DATE:

SCALE:

SURVEYED:

107-B COMMERCE STREET

GREENVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA  27858

(252) 756-9352

STROUD ENGINEERING, P.A.

OWNER:

ORDINANACE NO. AREA

ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE,NC

MAYOR DATE

MAP SHOWING AREA TO BE ANNEXED BY

PROJECT NO.       

DRAWING NO.       

DRAWN:

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP          PITT COUNTY             NORTH CAROLINA

LICENSE NO.C-0647

VICINITY MAP

N
O

R
T

H

N
C
 

G
R
I

D
 

N
A

D
 

8
3

NEW CITY LIMIT LINE

OLD CITY LIMIT LINE

EXISTING CITY LIMIT LINE

LEGEND:

0 HOB

ELI'S RIDGE, PHASES 1 AND 3

BILL CLARK HOMES OF GREENVILLE, LLC

(252) 355-5805

GREENVILLE, NC  27858

200 E ARLINGTON BLVD

DTB

DTB

DTB

07/16/20

P1611ANNEX.DGN

200 400200 100

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1"= 200'

1"= 200'

M.B. 12, PG. 54

D.B. 1558, PG. 558

PN 25758

R/
W

60
' 

PUBLI
C 

R/
W 
- 

PAVED

WORTHI
NGTON 

RD

NCSR 
171

1 

R/
W

PN 25777

PN 25777

PN 36710

ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON

LOIS D. WORTHINGTON

D.B. 1558, PG. 508

PN 84823

REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE RECORDED".

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES, WHETHER OR NOT

BY MUNICIPALITIES,  NOR TO PLATS OF

STATE LINES, COUNTY LINES, AREAS ANNEXED

SHALL NOT APPLY TO BOUNDARY PLATS OF

"THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION

STATES:

REQUIREMENTS PER GS 47-30 (j) WHICH

THIS MAP IS EXEMPT FROM GS 47-30

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON, SR

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

D.B. 3778, PG. 845

PN 84823

F
ork Sw

a
m
p

WINSTON DR.

V
I

L
L

A
G

E
 

D
R

W
I

N
T

E
R
 

GAYLE BLVD

R
A

G
L

A
N

D
 

R
D

LYNN 
LOOP

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

J
A

S
M
I

N
E

LORA LN

BAYBERRY

PRIMROSE SITE

WORTHI
NGTON 

RD

LAURIE ELLIS RD

O
L

D
 

T
A

R
 

R
D

N

O
L

D
 

T
A

R
 

R
D

21
3.

85
'

8.11'

182.81'

1
8
6
.
2
6
'

16
3.

09
'

8
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
9
.
8
2
'

1
5
0
.
0
0
'

1
5
0
.
0
0
'

60.10'
C1

C
2

C
3

26.06'

115.69'

83.24'

88.56'

99.74'

61.31'

    61.19'

CH= S01°42'14"E

L= 61.30'

 = 11°42'24"

R= 300.00'

C3

    28.28'

CH= S49°08'58"W

L= 31.41'

 = 89°58'58"

R= 20.00'

C2

    48.62'

L= 48.74'

 = 13°57'47"

R= 200.00'

C1

    24.34'

L= 24.35'

 = 05°21'57"

R= 260.00'

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET 1 OF 1

CURVE DATA:

125.12'

114.32'

18.38 AC

A PORTION OF PN 84754

18.38 AC

N
E

W
 

C
I

T
Y
 

L
I

M
I

T
 

L
I

N
E

N
E

W
 
C
I
T

Y
 
L
I

M
I
T
 
L
I

N
E

REMAINDER OF PN 84754

REMAINDER OF PN 84754

1.65'

AXLEEX 
IRON

A PORTION OF PARCEL NUMBER 84754

P1611~001

024
5



6



7



8



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, October 
12, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
The Town of Winterville has received an annexation petition from Bill Clark Homes of 
Greenville, LLC for Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3. 
 
Additional information is available by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19. These measures include barring physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation. The public is encouraged 
to watch the Town Council’s meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those 
that wish to address the Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town 
Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register, one business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m. Prior to 
or within 24-hours following the public hearing, the public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 Annexation 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday September 
30, 2020 and Wednesday, October 7, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

9

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

Town of Winterville 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, 

October 12, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a 

Public Hearing on the following proposal: 

 

 The Town of Winterville has received an annexation petition from Bill Clark Homes of 

Greenville, LLC for Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3. 

 

 Persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to speak either for or against the 

annexation are invited to be present and will be given the opportunity to be heard at the Town 

Council Public Hearing.  For further information, contact the Winterville Planning Department at 

(252) 215-2360. 

  

10



 

 

11



  

ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON, SR 
ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON, JR 
785 WORTHINGTON ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

 
 
JEANETTE DAVIS TRUST 
PO BOX 596 
MATTHEWS, NC 28106 
      

MATHANIEL G. KIRK 
3241 AYDEN GOLF CLUB ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
   

  

CINDY SUE WORTHINGTON 
867 WORTHINGTON ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

G & N MINI STORAGE LLC 
PO BOX 1088 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

DAVID N. WORTHINGTON 
1003 WORTHINGTON ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590   

  

FENNER LESLIE ALLEN III 
1014 BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

JAMES MARION PEARCH 
5520 COUNTY HOME ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

LENA KAY BRANCH GRANSTAFF 
455 EASTOVER DRIVE 
HARRISBURG, VA 22801   

  

JACK J. ALLEN 
ORA A. ALLEN 
1074 JACK JONES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

IELENA BRANCH LIFE ESTATE  
117 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590      

ADRIAN THOMAS ADAMS 
SARAH CATHERINE ADAMS 
3185 MAJOR SMITH ROAD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858   

  

AARON DANIEL ADAMS 
116 HILLCREST DRIVE 
WASHINGTON , NC 27887 

      

CAROL H BRANCH 
1109 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

SILVERWOOD INVESTMENTS 
LLC 
1031 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

   

  

SUE ELLEN BROCK 
1119 JACK JONES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

      

MAILED 
9/28/2020         

                 

                 

                 

                 

 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville 

Annexation Ordinance 

 

Ordinance No: 20-O-101 

Property Annexed: Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC – Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 

Ordinance Adopted: October 12, 2020 

Effective Date: October 31, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mail to: 

 

Town of Winterville 

Attn: Planning Department 

2571 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

13



Ordinance No. 20-O-101 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC – Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the 

area described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has, by resolution, directed the Town Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of the petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 

hearing on the question of annexation was held at the Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 pm on 

October 12, 2020 after due notice was given by publication on September 30, 2020 and October 

7, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 160A-31; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 

North Carolina that: 

 

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Winterville as of October 31, 2020: 

 

Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC – Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 

Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and lying north of NCSR 

1713 Laurie Ellis Road, east of NCSR 1700 Old Tar Road, and being bounded on the north by 

NCSR 1711 Worthington Road, on the west by Alva Wayne Worthington, Sr. (Deed Book 1558, 

Page 558), and on the east and south by Bill Clark Homes of Greenville, LLC (Deed Book 3683, 

Page 559), and being more particularly described as follows:  

Beginning at an existing iron axle (a control corner) near the southern right-of-way of NCSR 

1711 Worthington Road, near the northeast corner of Parcel Number 25758 Alva Wayne 

Worthington, Sr., thence from the axle S24 °04'43"E a distance of l.65'to a no point set on the 

southern right-of-way of Worthington Road, the northeast corner of Parcel Number 25758, the 

True Point of Beginning. 

Thence from the True Point of Beginning along the southern right-of-way of Worthington Road 

North 71 °26'41" East a distance of 394.73 feet to a point, thence leaving the southern right-of-

way of Worthington Road and following a new annexation line through the lands of Bill Clark 

Homes of Greenville, LLC the following calls: South 07 °03'23 11 East a distance of 125.12 feet, 

thence South 37 °15'27 11 East a distance of 8.11 feet, thence South 13 °21 126 11 East a 

distance of 182.81 feet, thence with a curve to the left having a radius of 260.00 feet and being 

subtended by a chord of South 73 °44'11" West a distance of24.34 feet, thence South 24 

°04'43" East a distance of 186.26 feet, thence North 71 °26 142 11 East a distance of 163.09 

feet, thence North 71 °22'36" East a distance of 83.24 feet, thence South 87 °30'09 11 East a 

14



distance of 88.56 feet, thence South 84 °38 159 11 East a distance of 115.69 feet, thence South 

82 °29 126 11 East a distance of 99 .74 feet, thence South 71 °58'51 11 East a distance of61.31 

feet, thence South 50 °40'03" East a distance of 80.00 feet, thence South 50 °40 103 11 East 

for a distance of 480.00 feet, thence South 39 ° 19'57 11 West a distance of 150.00 feet, thence 

South 35 °59'36" West a distance of60.10 feet, thence South 39 °19'57" West a distance of 

150.00 feet, thence North 50 °40'03" West a distance of 449.76 feet, thence South 18 °06'41" 

West a distance of239.82 feet, thence with a curve to the left having a radius of200.00 feet and 

being subtended by a chord of North 78 °52' 10" West a distance of 48.62 feet, thence North 85 

°51 '02" West a distance of 26.06 feet, thence with a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 

feet and being subtended by a chord of South 49 °08'58" West a distance of28.28 feet, thence 

South 04 °08'58" West a distance of 114.32 feet, thence with a curve to the left having a radius 

of 300.00 feet and being subtended by a chord of South 01 °42'14" East a distance of61.I9 feet, 

thence South 82 °26'33" West a distance of267.45 feet to a point in the eastern line of Alva 

Wayne Worthington, Sr. (Parcel Number 25758), thence North 24 °04 143 11 West a distance 

of 1231.12 feet to the True Point of Beginning, containing 18.38 Acres and being a portion of 

Parcel Number 84754. 

 

Section 2. Upon and after October 31, 2020, the above-described territory and its 

citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in 

the Town of Winterville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of 

the Town of Winterville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to NCGS 

160A-58.10. 

 

Section 3. The Mayor Pro Tem of the Town of Winterville shall cause to be recorded in 

the Office of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in 

Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 

above, together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such map shall also be delivered to 

the County Board of Elections, as required by NCGS 163-288.1. 

 
 

Adopted this the 12th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
  

15



North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted 

by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, at a meeting held on January 

13, 2020 at 7 o’clock pm at the Town Hall in the Town of Winterville. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the official 

corporate seal of the Town of Winterville to be affixed, this ____ day of ______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 

 

North Carolina  

 

Pitt County 

 

I, Kristin L. Godley, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

certification, for the purpose therein expressed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of ____________, 20__. 

 

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires:   

16



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: R. E. Davenport Property - Rezoning Request (Parcel 05590). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Public Hearing Notice, Notification to 
Adjacent Property Owners, List of Addresses of Adjacent Property Owners, Staff Report, and Ordinance 20-
O-102. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 9/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: R. E. Davenport Jr., FLP. 

 

Location: Intersection of NC 903 S and NC 11 S. 

 

Parcel Number: 05590. 

 

Site Data: 43.69 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: General Business (GB). 

 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on August 17, 2020. 

❖ Notification of the public hearing was mailed to adjacent property owners on September 28, 

2020. 

❖ Notice of the public hearing was published in the Daily Reflector on September 30, 2020 and 

October 7, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

17



18



19



20



21



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, October 
12, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
R. E. Davenport Jr, FLP has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 05590 from Agricultural-
Residential (AR) to General Business (GB). Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the purpose 
of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the 
traveling public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to 
the pedestrian shopper. 
 
Copies of the Ordinance are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Hall and are 
available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville 
Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19. These measures include barring physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation. The public is encouraged 
to watch the Town Council’s meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those 
that wish to address the Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town 
Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register, one business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m. Prior to 
or within 24-hours following the public hearing, the public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – Davenport Property Rezoning Request 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday September 
30, 2020 and Wednesday, October 7, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

22

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, October 12, 

2020 at 7:00 pm.  Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and to maintain the safety of Town residents, staff, 

and Board members, the meeting will be conducted electronically. The agenda is available on the Town website 

at www.wintervillenc.com. 

 

 R. E. Davenport Jr, FLP has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 05590 as shown on the attached map 

from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to General Business (GB).  Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, The 

purpose of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the traveling public, 

require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the pedestrian shopper. 

 

Persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to speak either for or against are encouraged to submit 

comments in writing prior to the meeting to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com.  Details on how to participate or 

view the meeting will be posted on the Town website.  For further information, contact the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

  

23

mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com


 

 

24



  

SOPHIA M YARBOROUGH 
3102 ETON ROAD 
RALEIGH NC 27608      

THOMAS MCLASWHORN 
904 HAVEL CT 
CHARLOTTE, NC 28211 
      

BROOKFIELD HOA OF 
WINTERVILLE NC 
300 COTANCHE STREET 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 
   

  

JUDY MCLAWHORN 
4897 REEDY BRANCH ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
      

WOOTEN S T CORPORATION 
3801 BLACK CREEK ROAD 
WILSON NC 277893 
      

THE ROBERTS COMPANY 
133 FORLINES ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
   

  
  
      

 
MAILED ON 

9/28/2020 
____________ 

 

     

 
  

   

  

 
  

            

  
  
   

  

 
  
 

      

  

         

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 25



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT R.E. Davenport Jr., FLP  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to General Business (GB) 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 717 Laurie Ellis Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 05590 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on September 28, 2020.  Notice of the public hearing was 
published in the Daily Reflector on September 30, 2020 and 
October 7, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on June 30, 2020.  
6 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 43.69 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Agricultural 

 

 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Existing SFR  

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N Industrial Manufacturing 

E CB/MR Downtown/MainStreet  

W AR Agricultural/Residential 

S GB Agricultural 

 
 

 

 

26



 

2 
Staff Report 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
Agricultural Residential (AR) 

 
General Business (CN)  

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 
 

GB – Maintain and enhance a 
compact business area for the 
retailing of goods.    

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Stream feature located along northern portion of 
property (50’ Riparian Buffer along Nobel Canal).   

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan submittal is required for any change of 
use in existing building 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION NC 11 S – NCDOT Road 
NC 903 S – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

NC 11 S – 28,000  
NC 903 S – 5,600  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

27



 

3 
Staff Report 

SIDEWALKS Depending on site plan submittal, sidewalks may 
be required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Mixed Use Center character 

area. The requested General Business zoning district is generally consistent with this 

character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   

• (1.2) Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail, restaurants, professional 

offices and industrial development. 

 

Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce 
retail leakage: 

• (2.1) Support Winterville’s transformation from a “bedroom community” to a 

“neighboring community” of Greenville. 

 
Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, 
expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial): 

• (6.2) Encourage and support local businesses, especially in expansion efforts. 

 

  

 

 

28



 

4 
Staff Report 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

Staff Analysis 
The 43.69 acre property is currently being used for agriculture and there is a single family 
home located on the property.  The property North of the request is zoned Industrial, with a 
concrete manufacturer (ST Wooten) and manufacturing/fabrication company (The Roberts 
Company).   West of the request is zoned AR being used for agriculture.  South of the request 
is zoned GB and is also currently being used for agriculture.  West of the request is across 
NC 11 S and is CB and MFR and consists of a variety of land uses in the Downtown area. 
 
The General Business rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Planning Board and Staff Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval  of the 

rezoning request from AR to GB on August 17, 2020. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 43.69 acres from AR 

to GB. 

 

29



Ordinance No: 20-O-102 

Page 1 of 2 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 155 

ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, R. E. Davenport Jr., FLP has requested amendment of the Zoning Ordinance of the 

Town of Winterville by rezoning of the property described herein of Agricultural Residential (AR) to 
General Business (GB); and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this zoning amendment was held, at the 
Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on October 12, 2020, after due notice publication on September 30, 
2020 and October 7, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by first class mail to the owners of 
all parcels, as shown on the County Tax Records, adjoining the parcel under consideration, certification 
of which has been to the Winterville Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by posting a rezoning request 
notice on the subject property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Winterville Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is in compliance with 
the Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North 
Carolina that: 
 

Section 1. The Town of Winterville Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map, is hereby amended 
by rezoning the following described track from Agricultural Residential to General Business (GB). 
 
 R. E. Davenport Jr., FLP, a 43.69-acre tract land located on NC 903 and NC 11 S, Portion of 
Tax Parcel 05590, and being more particularly described on the attached legal description provided 
below. 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
REZONED FROM AR to GB 
R. E. DAVENPORT, JR., FLP 

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 
 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Being a parcel of land in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being bounded on 
the north by S.T. Wooten Corporation; on the east by NC 11; on the south by Sophia M. 
Yarborough and on the west by Sophia M. Yarborough and Judy Worthington McLawhorn, Trustee 
and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a NGS Control monument "Concrete" having North Carolina State Plane Coordinates 
of N= 648853.771 sFT and E = 2473407.163 sFT (NAD 83 2001 Adjustment); thence from said control 
iron N 19°54'0911 W 1,504.67 feet to a new 1½" iron pipe, the south west corner of the R.E. Davenport, 
Jr. Tract as recorded in map book 64 page 147 of the Pitt County Registry, the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
thence from said beginning point N 01 °56'5411 W 578.69 feet to a new 1½" iron pipe in the southern 
right of way line of NC 903; thence crossing NC 903 N 01 °01 '3611 W 60.00 feet to a new iron pipe in 
the northern right of way line of NC 903; thence along the northern right of way line of NC 903 S 

30



Ordinance No: 20-O-102 

Page 2 of 2 

88°44'4811 W 556.47 feet to a new 1½" iron pipe in the northern right of way line of NC 903 and the 
southeastern corner of the Judy Worthington McLawhorn, Trustee tract as recorded in deed book 2976 
page 29 of the Pitt County Registry; thence along the McLawhorn line N 00°49'23 11 W 656.86 feet to a 
new 1 W' iron pipe; thence N 02°22'1511 W 393.06 feet to a point in the centerline of Mirey Branch; 
thence along the centerline of Mirey Branch the following 23 courses: S 63°05'2511 E 189.37 feet; S 
75°08'4211 E 97.16 feet; N 60°00'4211 E 89.99 feet; N 77°37'2911 E 138.25 feet; N 57°41'1711 E 
63.34 feet; N 42°34'5511 E 118.51 feet; N 81 °24'0011 E 76.84 feet; N 69°22'3311 E 47.58 feet; N 
37°33'1011 E 49.47 feet; N 50°30'5411 E 83.81 feet; N 76°20'0411 E 50.07 feet; N 60°38'3011 E 70.21 
feet; N 34°49'3711 E 33.73 feet; N 45°47'5411 E 60.81 feet; N 73°38'0611 E 33.55 feet; N 28°58'2911 
E 51.69 feet; N 63°59'5611 E 28.17 feet; N 6°17'4211 E 67.19 feet; N 00°54'00" E 43.50 feet; N 
44°46'0911 E 115.57 feet; N 23°11 'l 911 E 59.27 feet; N 30°26'3 l II E 31.14 feet; N 50°11 'l 711 E 109 
.61 feet to a point in the western right of way line of NC 11; thence along the western right of way line of 
NC 11 S 03°35'4611 W 427.09 feet to an existing concrete monument; thence along the western right 
of way line of NC 11 S 87°39'23" E 9.77 feet to an existing concrete monument; thence continuing 
along the western right of way line of NC 11 S 03°34'0811 W 1,223.74 feet to an existing concrete 
monument; thence continuing along the western right of way line of NC 11 S 33°37'2111 W 114.91 feet 
to an existing concrete monument in the norther right of way line of NC 903; thence crossing NC 903 S 
01 °39'1711 E 60.00 feet to an existing concrete monument in the southern right of way line of NC 903; 
thence along the western right of way line of NC 11 S 30°12'0511 E 111.06 feet to an existing concrete 
monument; thence continuing along the western right of way line of NC 11 S 03°33'0911 W 1,113.42 
feet to an existing concrete monument; thence continuing along the western right of way line of NC 11 
N 86°06'1511 W 76.26 feet to an existing concrete monument; thence along the eastern line of Sophia 
M. Yarborough as recorded in deed book 2512 page 446 of the Pitt County Registry N 00°53'3 l II W 
615. 73 feet to a new 1 W' iron pipe; thence along the northern line of Sophia M. Yarborough as 
recorded in deed book 2512 page 446 of the Pitt County Registry S 89° l 5'5111 W 468.59 feet to the 
point of beginning containing 44.51 acres, more or less. The metes and bounds were taken from map 
book 64 page 14 7 of the Pitt County Registry. 

 

End of Legal Description 
 

Section 2. This action shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map. 
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 

Adopted this 12th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

31



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: F & A Construction Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Public Hearing Notice, Notification to 
Adjacent Property Owners, List of Addresses of Adjacent Property Owners, Staff Report, and Ordinance 20-
O-103. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 9/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: F & A Construction, LLC. 

 

Location: Northeast corner of Laurie Ellis Road and Old Tar Road. 

 

Parcel Number: 55092. 

 

Site Data: 5.392 Acres (Total Tract = 16.51 Acres). 

 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: Neighborhood Commercial (CN). 

 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval on August 17, 2020. 

❖ Notification of the public hearing was mailed to adjacent property owners on September 28, 

2020. 

❖ Notice of the public hearing was published in the Daily Reflector on September 30, 2020 and 

October 7, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

32



REZONING APPLICATION 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

2571 Railroad St. 
 P O Box 1459 

Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 756-2221 

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION: 

Applicant:    F&A Construction, LLC  

Address:   1537 W. 5 t h  Street ,  Washington, NC 27889 

Phone #: (704) 771-4366 

Owner:  F&A Construction, LLC 

Address: 1537 W. 5th Street, Washington, NC 27889 

Phone #:   (704) 771-4366 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Parcel #:  55092  Area (square feet or acres):     16.51 acres (5.4 acres requesting rezoning)

Current Land Use:   Agricultural 

Location of Property:   717 Laurie Ellis Road 

ZONING REQUEST 

Existing Zoning:   AR  Requested Zoning:   CN 

Reason for zoning change:   The proposed neighborhood commercial (CN) zoning will allow for the development 

of commercial buildings at the northeast corner of the intersection of Old Tar Road and Laurie Ellis Road in 

general conformance with the land use plan.   

This application shall be accompanied by the following items: 

- A map drawn to a scale of not less than 400 feet to the inch and not more than 20 feet to the inch showing the land covered by the proposed
amendment;

- A legal description of the property;
- A list of the names and addresses of all owners of property involved in the map change and all adjoining property owners as shown on County tax

records;
- A filing fee according to a regularly adopted Fee Schedule of the Town.

Staff Use Only 
Appl. #  

33



34



35



REZONING MAP 
 

FOR 
 

F&A CONSTRUCTION LLC 
 
 

Proposed Zoning = CN: 
 
Beginning at a point located in the eastern right of way line of NCSR 

1700 (Old Tar Road) at its intersection with the northern right of way line 

of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road); thence with the eastern right of 

way line of NCSR 1700 (Old Tar Road) North 19°25’20” West for a 

distance of 234.44 feet to a point, thence with a curve turning to right 

with a radius of 8576.32 feet, said curve having a chord bearing of North 

17°14’29” West and a chord distance of 582.69 feet; thence North 

14°38’36” West for a distance of 57.21 feet to an existing iron pipe, said 

point being the southwest corner of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property 

as recorded in Deed Book 1756 Page 307, Deed Book 3129 Page 824, 

and Deed Book 3129, Page 828 of the Pitt County Registry; thence 

leaving the eastern right of way line of NCSR 1700 (Old Tar Road) 

and with the southern line of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property; South 

80°33’15” East for a distance of 621.16 feet to a point, thence leaving the 

southern line of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property and with a new line South 

69°26’32” West for a distance of 138.55 feet; thence South 57°05’25” 

West for a distance of 119.30 feet; thence South 49°37’05” West for a 

distance of 87.13 feet; thence South 19°25’20” East for a distance of 

555.80 feet to a point in the northern right of way line of NCSR 1713 

(Laurie Ellis Road); thence cornering and with the northern right of way 

line of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road) along a curve turning to the left 

with a radius of 1355.83 feet; said curve having a chord bearing of South 

66°18’41” West and a chord distance of 21.56 feet; thence South 66°28’51” 

West for a distance of 153.48 feet; thence North 66°26’46” West for a 

distance of 82.57 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING containing 5.392 

acres more or less as shown on Ark Consulting Group Drawing No. C-

1002 entitled “Zoning Map for F&A Construction” dated June 19, 2020. 

36



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, October 
12, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public 
Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
F & A Construction, LLC has submitted a proposal to rezone a portion of Parcel 55092 (717 
Laurie Ellis Road) from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to Neighborhood Commercial (CN). Per 
the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (CN) district is 
to provide convenient shopping facilities consisting primarily of necessary services required to 
serve a neighborhood. 
 
Copies of the Ordinance are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Hall and are 
available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville 
Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19. These measures include barring physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation. The public is encouraged 
to watch the Town Council’s meeting live on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those 
that wish to address the Town Council during the Public Hearing should contact the Town 
Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register, one business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m. Prior to 
or within 24-hours following the public hearing, the public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – F&A Construction, LLC Rezoning Request 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday September 
30, 2020 and Wednesday, October 7, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

37

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, October 12, 

2020 at 7:00 pm.  Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and to maintain the safety of Town residents, staff, 

and Council members, the meeting will be conducted electronically. The agenda is available on the Town 

website at www.wintervillenc.com. 

 

 F & A Construction, LLC has submitted a proposal to rezone a portion of Parcel 55092 (717 Laurie Ellis 

Road) as shown on the attached map from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to Neighborhood Commercial (CN).  

Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (CN) district is to provide 

convenient shopping facilities consisting primarily of necessary services required to serve a neighborhood.   

 

Persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to speak either for or against are encouraged to submit 

comments in writing prior to the meeting to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com.  Details on how to participate or 

view the meeting will be posted on the Town website.  For further information, contact the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

  

38

mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com


 

 

39



  

SIDETTE BOYCE BROWN 
EMANUELL BROWN 
5108 OLD TAR ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590      

FISHER ISLAND, LLC 
PO BOX 72 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

BROOKFIELD HOA OF 
WINTERVILLE NC 
300 COTANCHE STREET 
GREENVILLE, NC 27858 
   

  

LINDA VERNELSON MCLAWHORN 
2351 OLD CREEK ROAD 
GREENVILLE, NC 27834      

COOPER ISLAND DEVELOPMENT 
PO BOX 606 
GREENVILLE NC 27835      

PEDRO BALDERA TRUST 
1036 MADISON AVE 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92116   

  

KARL WESLEY MCLAWHORN, JR 
KARLA MCLAWHORN ALLEN 
PO BOX 611 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
      

JANE MELLON BOFENKAMP 
MARY F MELLON 
PO BOX 1827 
WAKE FOREST, NC 27588 
      

 
MATTHEW J GASKILL 
DENISE C GASKILL 
716 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

 
  

  

 
ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON, JR 
JONI B. WORTHINGTON 
5921 HEATHERSTONE DRIVE 
RALEIGH, NC 27606 

 
     

MAILED ON  
9/28/2020 
____________      

KARLA MCLAWHORN ALLEN 
GREGORY W. ALLEN 
753 LAURIE ELLIS ROAD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
   

  

 
KARL W. MCLAWHORN, JR 
5111 OLD TAR ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 
 

 
     

ASHLEY MARIE CRAFT 
5079 OLD TAR ROAD 
WINTERVILLE, NC 28590 

         

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 40



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT F & A Construction, LLC  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to Neighborhood Commercial (CN) 
(5.392 acres of tract) 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 717 Laurie Ellis Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 55092 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on September 28, 2020 and Notice was published in the 
Daily Reflector on September 30, 2020 and October 7, 2020.  
Notification was posted on site on June 30, 2020.  12 properties 
were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE Total Tract = 16.51 Acres; Rezoning Request for 5.392 acres of tract 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Agricultural 

 
 

 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Residential 

E AR Agricultural/SFR  

W R-10 Residential/SFR 

S AR Agricultural/SFR 

 
 

 

 

 

41



 

2 
Staff Report 

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
Agricultural Residential (AR) 

 
Neighborhood Commercial 
(CN)  

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 
 

CN-Provide shopping of 
necessary services for 
neighborhoods;    

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Stream feature located along northern portion of 
property (50’ Riparian Buffer along feature).  
Stream splits on northern corners of property, 
leaving two triangular portions of the property 
bound by buffers. 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan submittal is required for any change of 
use in existing building 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Old Tar Road – NCDOT Road 
Laurie Ellis Road – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

42



 

3 
Staff Report 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Old Tar Road - 5100  
Laurie Ellis Road - 1100  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Depending on site plan submittal, sidewalks may 
be required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed Neighborhood Commercial zoning district would allow land uses that are 
compatible with the general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map has two character areas designated for this property:  

Neighborhood Center character area and Urban Neighborhood character area.  

The requested Neighborhood Commercial zoning district is generally consistent with 

the Neighborhood Center  character area as defined by the future land use designation.   

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth (Neighborhood Commercial):   

• (1.2) Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail, restaurants, professional 

offices and industrial development. 

 

Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce 
retail leakage (Neighborhood Commercial): 

• (2.1) Support Winterville’s transformation from a “bedroom community” to a 

“neighboring community” of Greenville. 

 
Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, 
expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial): 

• (6.2) Encourage and support local businesses, especially in expansion efforts. 

 

43



 

4 
Staff Report 

  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
The 16.6 acre property is currently vacant and being used for agriculture.  The property North 
of the request is zoned AR and has single family homes.   East of the request is zoned AR 
with single family homes and agriculture.  South of the request is zoned AR and has single 
family homes.  West of the request is R-10 and Brookfield subdivision.  
 
The Neighborhood Commercial rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the Zoning Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area. 
 
Planning Board and Staff Recommendation 

 

The Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval of the 

rezoning request on August 17, 2020. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 5.4 acres from AR to 

CN. 

 

44



Ordinance No: 20-O-103 

Page 1 of 2 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 155 

ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

 
WHEREAS, F & A Construction, LLC has requested amendment of the Zoning Ordinance of the 

Town of Winterville by rezoning of the property described herein of Agricultural Residential (AR) to 
Neighborhood Commercial (CN); and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this zoning amendment was held, at the 
Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on October 12, 2020, after due notice publication on September 30, 
2020 and October 7, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by first class mail to the owners of 
all parcels, as shown on the County Tax Records, adjoining the parcel under consideration, certification 
of which has been to the Winterville Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by posting a rezoning request 
notice on the subject property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Winterville Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is in compliance with 
the Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North 
Carolina that: 
 

Section 1. The Town of Winterville Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map, is hereby amended 
by rezoning the following described track from Agricultural Residential to Neighborhood Commercial 
(CN). 
 
 F & A Construction, LLC, a 5.4-acre tract land located on Old Tar Road, Portion of Tax Parcel 
55092, and being more particularly described on the attached legal description provided below. 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
REZONED FROM AR to CN 

F & A CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more 

particularly described as follows: 
 

Beginning at a point located in the eastern right of way line of NCSR 1700 (Old Tar Road) at its 
intersection with the northern right of way line of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis Road); thence with the 
eastern right of way line of NCSR 1700 (Old Tar Road) North 19°25’20” West for a distance of 
234.44 feet to a point, thence with a curve turning to right with a radius of 8576.32 feet, said curve 
having a chord bearing of North 17°14’29” West and a chord distance of 582.69 feet; thence North 
14°38’36” West for a distance of 57.21 feet to an existing iron pipe, said point being the southwest 
corner of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property as recorded in Deed Book 1756 Page 307, Deed 
Book 3129 Page 824, and Deed Book 3129, Page 828 of the Pitt County Registry; thence leaving 
the eastern right of way line of NCSR 1700 (Old Tar Road) and with the southern line of the Karl 
W. McLawhorn, Jr. property; South 80°33’15” East for a distance of 621.16 feet to a point, thence 
leaving the southern line of the Karl W. McLawhorn, Jr. property and with a new line South 

45



Ordinance No: 20-O-103 

Page 2 of 2 

69°26’32” West for a distance of 138.55 feet; thence South 57°05’25” West for a distance of 
119.30 feet; thence South 49°37’05” West for a distance of 87.13 feet; thence South 19°25’20” 
East for a distance of 555.80 feet to a point in the northern right of way line of NCSR 1713 (Laurie 
Ellis Road); thence cornering and with the northern right of way line of NCSR 1713 (Laurie Ellis 
Road) along a curve turning to the left with a radius of 1355.83 feet; said curve having a chord 
bearing of South 66°18’41” West and a chord distance of 21.56 feet; thence South 66°28’51” West 
for a distance of 153.48 feet; thence North 66°26’46” West for a distance of 82.57 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING containing 5.392 acres more or less as shown on Ark Consulting Group 
Drawing No. C-1002 entitled “Zoning Map for F&A Construction” dated June 19, 2020. 

 
End of Legal Description 

 
Section 2. This action shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 

Adopted this 12th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

46



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Request for Taxicab Franchise from All Dunn Transport. 

Action Requested: Approval of Certificate of Convenience and Necessity. 

Attachment: Application for Taxicab Franchise, Public Hearing Advertisement, Draft Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity, and Taxicab Regulations - Ordinance Chapter 113. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 9/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp – 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Mr. Domika D. Dunn, owner of All Dunn Transport requests to operate a Taxicab Franchise in the Town of 

Winterville. The applicant has submitted his application for approval of the certificate of convenience and 

necessity. The Public Hearing was advertised in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, September 30, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approve the Taxicab Franchise and Certificate of Convenience for All Dunn Transport 
and Issuance of the Permit to Operate a Taxicab for Applicant, to Mr. Domika Dunn (owner of All Dunn 
Transport) contingent upon the Police’s Department’s investigation of the truth of facts of the Application. 

 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, 
October 12, 2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, 
to hold a Public Hearing on the following application: 
 
The Town of Winterville has received an application from All Dunn Transport for a 
certificate of convenience and necessity for a taxicab franchise. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to 
mitigate the spread of COVID-19. These measures include barring physical attendance 
at the meeting, employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation. The 
public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s meeting live on YouTube 
(www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the Town Council during 
the Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register, one 
business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m. Prior to or within 24-hours following the 
public hearing, the public may submit written comments to the Town Clerk’s office, 2571 
Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. 
Please include your name and address. 
 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Display Advertisements 
customerservice@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9505 
 
Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – Taxicab Application - All Dunn Transport 
 
Please place the above block advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Wednesday, 
September 30, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with 
payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

69

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 

Under Chapter 113 of the Code of Ordinances 

Town of Winterville, North Carolina 

 

WHEREAS, application for a certificate of convenience and necessity has been filed by All Dunn 

Transport (Domika D. Dunn, owner) under the provisions of Chapter 113 of the Code of Ordinances of 

the Town of Winterville; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this application was held at the Winterville Town Hall 

Assembly Room at 7:00 pm on Monday, October 12, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, having made favorable findings, in the regular 

monthly meeting held at 7:00 pm on Monday, October 12, 2020, has ordered the issuance of a 

certificate of convenience and necessity to All Dunn Transport (Domika D. Dunn, owner); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL does hereby 

issue this certificate of convenience and necessity to: 

All Dunn Transport (Domika D. Dunn, owner) 

 This certificate shall constitute a franchise from the Town of Winterville for the operation of 

taxicabs within the town subject to the provisions of Chapter 113 of the Code of Ordinances of the 

Town of Winterville. 

 The duration of the certificate shall be a period of three (3) years. Application for renewal shall 

be filed at the expiration of this three (3) year franchise and hearings upon the question of renewal shall 

be conducted as provided under Section 113.02 (G) of the Code of Ordinances. 

 The Town Council of the Town of Winterville may, at any time after a public hearing conducted 

in the same manner as provided in Section 113.02 (G), revoke this certificate of convenience and 

necessity for any one or more of the causes listed under Section 113.04 of the Code of Ordinances. 

Issued this the 12th day of October 2020. 

 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

70



Winterville, NC Code of Ordinances

CHAPTER 113:  TAXICABS

Section

Taxicab Regulations

   113.01   Definitions

   113.02   Certificate of convenience and necessity

   113.03   Transfer of certificate

   113.04   Revocation of certificate

   113.05   Schedule of rates charged by taxicabs; display to passengers

   113.06   Liability insurance

   113.07   Transfer of certificate, liability insurance to another vehicle

Taxicab Drivers

   113.20   Permit required

   113.21   Fee; term; renewal

   113.22   Permit revocation

   113.23   Suspension of permit

   113.24   Display of permit to passengers

Statutory reference:

   Regulation of taxicabs, see G.S. §§ 20-37.10 et seq., 160A-304

TAXICAB REGULATIONS

§ 113.01  DEFINITIONS.

   For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different
meaning.

   TAXICAB.  Any motor vehicle seating fewer than ten passengers and operated upon any street or highway on call or on demand,
accepting or soliciting passengers indiscriminately for hire between the points along the streets or highways as may be directed by the
passengers being transported. TAXICAB shall not include motor vehicles or common carrier by motor vehicle as defined in G.S. §§
62-3(7) and (18).

(1992 Code, § 113.01)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.02  CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY.

   (A)   Unlawful to operate without certification.  It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a taxicab over and upon the streets
of the town without first having applied for and secured from the Board of Alderpersons a certificate of convenience and necessity as
hereinafter set forth. 71



   (B)   Application.  Every person desiring to operate a taxicab within the town shall file, on forms supplied by the Town Clerk, an
application for a certificate of convenience and necessity.  A fee according to a regularly adopted fee schedule of the town shall be
paid to the town for each application to defray some of the advertising and other administrative expenses involved.

   (C)   Board of Alderpersons to issue certificates.  The Board of Alderpersons shall have the power to, and it shall be its duty to
order the issuance or the refusal to issue certain certificates of convenience and necessity for the operation of taxicabs.  The Board
may attach to the exercise of the privileges granted by the certificates the terms and conditions as in its judgement the public
convenience and necessity may require.

   (D)   Nature and duration of certificate.  A certificate shall constitute a franchise from the town for the operation of taxicabs
within the town, subject to the provisions of this chapter.  Certificates shall be for three calendar years, unless a shorter period of time
is specified in the certificate.  Applications for renewal shall be filed at the expiration of the previous three-year franchise and hearings
upon the question of renewal shall be conducted as provided in division (F) below.

   (E)   Factors considered in issuing permit.  In determining whether the public convenience and necessity require the franchising
of the taxicab or taxicabs, the Board of Alderpersons shall, among other things take into consideration the following factors:

      (1)   Whether the public convenience and necessity requires the proposed or additional taxicabs within the town;

      (2)   The financial responsibility of the applicant and the likelihood of the proposed service being permanent, responsible and
satisfactory;

      (3)   The number and condition of equipment;

      (4)   The schedule of proposed rates to be charged;

      (5)   The number of taxicabs now operated within the town and the demand for increased service, if any;

      (6)   Whether safe use of the streets by the public, both pedestrian and vehicular, will be preserved, and whether adequate
provision has been made for off-street parking of the taxicabs;

      (7)   The experience of the applicant in the taxicab business; and

      (8)   The other relative facts as may be deemed necessary or advisable to consider.

   (F)   Investigation.  Before making any decision with respect to the issuance of any certificate of convenience and necessity, the
Board of Alderpersons or a committee thereof, shall make a full and complete investigation of all pertinent facts, and may, if it so
desires, subpoena witnesses and utilize the services of the Chief of Police or any other officer or employee of the town.

   (G)   Hearing; notice.  Each application for a certificate shall be scheduled for a hearing not later than 45 days after the same is
filed, and the applicant shall be notified by the Town Clerk by mail at the business address set forth in the application of the day, time
and place of the hearing.  The notice shall be sent at least ten days prior to the hearing.  The Town Clerk shall also, within the same
time, notify all persons who at that time hold certificates of convenience and necessity for the operation of taxicabs within the
municipality of the day, time and place of the hearing, and of the name of the applicant.  In addition, the Town Clerk shall cause to be
published, within the same time, at least once in a newspaper of general circulation, or posted for ten days in three public places within
the town, a notice setting forth the name of the applicant and the purpose, day, time and place of the hearing.  The cost of the notice
will be paid in advance by the applicant.

   (H)   Burden of proof.  The burden of proof shall be upon the applicant to establish the fact that the public convenience and
necessity requires the operation of the taxicabs specified in his or her application, as well as other facts requisite to the granting of a
certificate.

   (I)   Failure to begin operations.  If a certificate is granted to an applicant, and the applicant fails to begin operation in accordance
with the provisions of the certificate within 60 days after the date of the certificate, then the certificate shall become null and void.

(1992 Code, § 113.02)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)  Penalty, see § 10.99

§ 113.03  TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATE.

   A certificate of convenience and necessity is not transferable without the consent of the Board of Alderpersons.  Application for
transfer of a certificate shall be made by the proposed transferee and shall be filed in the same manner as an application for an original
certificate.  The proceedings upon the application for transfer of a certificate shall be the same as those herein provided for the

72



issuance of a certificate,  except the question of public convenience and necessity need not be proved. 

(1992 Code, § 113.03)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.04  REVOCATION OF CERTIFICATE.

   (A)   The Board of Alderpersons may, at any time after a public hearing conducted in the same manner as provided in § 113.02(G),
revoke any certificate of convenience and necessity issued pursuant to this chapter for any one or more of the following causes:

      (1)   Failure to operate the taxicabs specified in the certificate in such a manner as to serve the public adequately and efficiently;

      (2)   Failure to maintain motor vehicle equipment in good repair;

      (3)   Failure to carry liability insurance or bond as required by this chapter;

      (4)   Failure to pay to the town taxes or license fees imposed on the taxicabs;

      (5)   Repeated and persistent violations by the taxicab drivers of traffic and safety ordinances, or  state laws relating to alcoholic
beverages or prostitution;

      (6)   Failure to report accidents; and

      (7)   Willful failure to comply with any provision of this chapter or other ordinances or state laws relating to the operation of
taxicabs.

   (B)   No certificate shall be revoked until the holder thereof has had five-days' notice by personal service or certified mail of the
charges against him or her, and of the time and place of the hearing giving him or her an opportunity to be heard.  If after the hearing,
the Board of Alderpersons finds that the holder is guilty of one or more of the offenses listed in division (A) above, the Board shall
have the power to revoke the certificate, or to condition a revocation upon compliance with its order within any time fixed by the
Board.

(1992 Code, § 113.04)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.05  SCHEDULE OF RATES CHARGED BY TAXICABS; DISPLAY TO PASSENGERS.

   (A)   The Board of Alderpersons may from time to time establish a schedule of rates to be charged by taxicabs for transporting
passengers.  The schedule so established shall remain in effect until changed by the Board.  The schedule shall at all times be
prominently displayed in each and every taxicab, so as to be visible to passengers therein.  The current schedule of rates is on file in
the office of the Town Clerk.

   (B)   Every taxicab operated within the geographical jurisdiction of this chapter shall at all times have prominently displayed therein,
in a place readily visible to all passengers, a schedule of the rates, fares, and charges for the use of the taxicab.

(1992 Code, § 113.05)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.06  LIABILITY INSURANCE.

   All owners and operators of taxicabs operated within the town shall procure and maintain upon each taxicab owned and operated by
him or her within the town, liability insurance with some insurance  company licensed to do business in the state in a minimum amount
of $100,000 for one person and $300,000 for more than one person for the protection of all passengers transported against personal
injuries and $50,000 property damage, against liability for damages to the person and property of others.

(1992 Code, § 113.06)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)  Penalty, see § 10.99

§ 113.07  TRANSFER OF CERTIFICATE, LIABILITY INSURANCE TO ANOTHER VEHICLE.

   The person to whom a certificate of convenience and necessity has been issued may, by appropriate endorsement thereon by the73



Town Clerk, substitute another vehicle or vehicles for the vehicle or vehicles for which the certificate was granted.  In such instance,
the liability insurance or bonds shall also be transferred to the substitute vehicle or vehicles.

(1992 Code, § 113.07)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

TAXICAB DRIVERS

§ 113.20  PERMIT REQUIRED.

   (A)   Permit required.  No person shall operate any taxicab for hire, carrying passengers from place to place within the corporate
limits, or carrying passengers between the town to points within a radius of five miles of the corporate limits, unless that person has
first applied for and secured from the Board of Alderpersons a permit to operate a taxicab.

   (B)   Application.  Application for a permit to operate a taxicab shall be made upon forms provided by the Town Clerk and shall,
among other things, state the name, address, physical condition, physical description, employment history, court record, and state
chauffeur license number.  The application shall be signed and sworn to by the applicant.  The applicant shall further appear at the
office of the Police Department and have his or her fingerprints taken, and shall also furnish a recent photograph of himself or herself,
both of which shall constitute a necessary part of his or her application.

   (C)   Investigate. The Chief of Police is hereby charged with the duty of investigating the truth of the facts stated in the application
and shall report his or her findings and recommendations to the Board of Alderpersons.

   (D)   Standards for granting permit.  If the Board of Alderpersons finds that the applicant has not been convicted of a felony; a
violation of any federal or state statute relating to the use, possession, or sale of narcotic drugs and that the applicant is a citizen of the
United States and is not a habitual violator of traffic laws, then the Board shall issue to the applicant a permit to drive a taxicab.

(1992 Code, § 113.15)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)  Penalty, see § 10.99

§ 113.21  FEE; TERM; RENEWAL.

   Upon issuance of a taxicab driver's permit, subject to the provisions of this article, the person to whom the permit is issued shall pay
therefore a fee according to a regularly adopted fee schedule of the town.  The permit shall be renewed annually.  Upon the
application for renewal the applicant for renewal shall be subject to the same investigation as required for initial issuance and shall pay
a renewal fee according to a regularly adopted fee schedule of the town.

(1992 Code, § 113.16)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.22  PERMIT REVOCATION.

   At any time after the issuance of a permit to any person to operate a taxicab, the Board of Alderpersons may revoke the permit if
the person holding the permit is convicted of a felony; a violation of any federal or state statute relating to the use, possession or sale of
intoxicating liquors; a violation of any federal or state statute relating to the use, possession, or sale of narcotic drugs; a violation of any
federal or state statute relating to prostitution; repeated violations of traffic laws; or if the person becomes a habitual user of
intoxicating liquor or narcotic drugs.

(1992 Code, § 113.17)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.23  SUSPENSION OF PERMIT.

   (A)   The Board of Alderpersons may suspend a taxicab driver's permit for the time as it may deem proper on any ground sufficient
for a revocation thereof; if the driver is found to have made a false statement in his or her application for a permit; if he or she shall be
found to have in his or her possession or custody any quantity of intoxicating liquor within his or her cab or upon his or her person while
on duty as a taxicab driver; or if he or she has violated any provision of this chapter.

   (B)   Before any suspension of permit is ordered by the Board of Alderpersons, the holder of the permit shall be given five-days'
74



written notice by the Town Clerk of the time and place of a hearing before the Board of Alderpersons, at which the holder of the
permit shall have an opportunity to show cause why his or her permit should not be suspended.

(1992 Code, § 113.18)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

§ 113.24  DISPLAY OF PERMIT TO PASSENGERS.

   The driver of every taxicab shall at all times while operating the taxicab prominently display therein, in a place readily visible to all
passengers, his or her permit to drive a taxicab.

(1992 Code, § 113.19)  (Ord. O-50-05119798, passed 5-11-1998)

75



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 9/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp – 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 

• September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

76



 

Page 1 of 14 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Tem Veronica W. Roberson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor (absent) 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman (remote) 

Mark C. Smith, Councilman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
  

77



 

Page 2 of 14 

PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments: Planning Director Jones 
gave the following presentation. 
 
Based on guidance from NC Department of Public Safety and staff review of the Winterville Flood 
Damage Prevention Ordinance, it was determined that the present ordinance requires some changes 
for clarification and to ensure consistency with the state’s model ordinance. 
 

 
 

 
 

78



 

Page 3 of 14 

 
 

 
 

 

79



 

Page 4 of 14 

 
 

 
 
Councilman Moore asked what towns in county have this. Planning Director Jones said it is consistent 
across state. Councilman Moore asked if this would provide flood funding. Planning Director Jones said 
yes, when damage occurs, and this allows the Town to apply for funds. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor 
of the annexation request. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition 
of the rezoning request. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any further discussion or any more 
questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Attorney Lassiter noted since the meeting was remote via ZOOM, the motion would be contingent on the 
receipt of any comments received within 24-hours of the meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Winterville 
Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance Amendments subject to the 24-hour comment period. The 
poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 

80



 

Page 5 of 14 

 
*(Note to the minutes) No comments were received within 24 hours of the conclusion of the 
meeting, thus the motion on the Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance Amendments is 
approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
1. Shantel Hawkins gave comments on the following: 
 

 

81



 

Page 6 of 14 

 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
➢ August 10, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

2. Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 Annexation: Schedule Public Hearing for October 12, 2020. 
3. F & A Construction Rezoning Request: Schedule Public Hearing for October 12, 2020. 
4. R. E. Davenport Property Rezoning Request: Schedule Public Hearing for October 12, 2020. 
5. All Dunn Transport Application for Taxicab Franchise: Schedule Public Hearing for October 

12, 2020. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Councilman Smith, Councilman Hines, and Councilman Moore had questions about the F & A rezoning.  
Planning Director Jones noted that they will be addressed at the Public Hearing. 
 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Human Relations Council – DRAFT By-Laws: Town Manager Parker introduced the item and requested 
comments from Town Council. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson had comments concerning the high school students voting, term limits, and 
chair term limits. Town Manager Parker commented on the Town Council liaison being a voting member. 
Attorney Lassiter noted the Staff liaison does not need to vote. Town Manager Parker said school 
members will change more frequently they could be voting members. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is 
the Board’s pleasure. No action was taken. Town Council was asked to submit comments to Town 
Manager Parker to update the existing Draft Bylaws. 

82



 

Page 7 of 14 

 
 

83



 

Page 8 of 14 

 
 

84



 

Page 9 of 14 

 
 

85



 

Page 10 of 14 

 
 

86



 

Page 11 of 14 

 
 

 

87



 

Page 12 of 14 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Award of Custodial Contract: Electric Director Sutton presented the Custodial bids. 
 
The 2020/2021 Public Buildings Budget allocated funding for the custodial care of the Town’s facilities. 
Staff advertised the contract on two (2) occasions, set up individual walk thru tours of the facilities for 
interested parties and established dates for submittal of questions and bids. 
 
Prior to the bid opening, Staff reached out to all interested parties and notified each the bid opening would 
be available for viewing via the ZOOM app. On August 13th at 2:00 pm the bid opening was performed. 
Six (6) submittals were received and opened. The attached Bid Tabulation sheet shows A & B Cleaning 
Services submitted the low bid of $3,875.21 per month for custodial services. 
 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to award the custodial 
services contract to A & B Cleaning Services for $3,875.21 per month. The poll vote results are as 
follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; 
Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Update on Christmas Events 2020: Parks and Recreation Director Johnston presented the following 
Christmas events and alternatives: 
 
While the Town’s annual Christmas events may seem a long way away, the time for accompanying 
planning efforts are upon us. The Town’s Christmas 2020 events would be Saturday, November 21st. 
This year has certainly been very different as a result of COVID-19 and it sounds like things will not be 
back to normal for some time. Due to the size and nature of the Town’s annual Christmas events, it is 
highly likely that they will be impacted by various COVID-19 rules and regulations especially mass 
gathering and social distancing. 
 
As a result of the continued uncertainty surrounding COVID-19, it’s impacts on future operations, and 
the timeline for planning efforts, Town Staff is requesting direction related to the status and operation of 
the Town’s 2020 Christmas events. Following is a list of Town Christmas events and some 
corresponding options. 

88



 

Page 13 of 14 

 

• Market: Due to the size and nature of the event, Staff recommends cancelling this 
year’s event. 

• Christmas Parade: 
o Option 1: Change parade to a drive by event. In this scenario, entries would be placed in a 

manner so that vehicles are able to view by driving by procession. By intent, spectators are 
in vehicles removing potential mass gathering related barriers. It is possible that people 
choose/try to walk by, rather than drive by, creating a potential enforcement/traffic control 
issue. 

o Option 2: Cancel event. 

• Tree Lighting Ceremony: Cancel event in the traditional format and replace with virtual 
options. For example, reading of “Twas the Night Before Christmas” and lighting of Town 
Christmas Tree could be live streamed on Town social media and YouTube. Town Staff can 
create some creative offerings in place of the traditional in-person Tree Lighting Ceremony. 

 
Town Manager Parker said currently we could not hold the events as usual. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson 
asked the location of the proposed drive by. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said street based; 
spectators would drive by. Town Manager Parker noted that other Towns are using this method. Parks 
and Recreation Director Johnston noted we would require social distancing. Councilman Moore said to 
have after thanksgiving. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston said this year we have flexibility. 
Councilman Smith said last year was too early, move to December. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what 
is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 

❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
❖ New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
❖ Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
❖ Cemetery (BW) 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that the street art would start tomorrow morning. Town 
Manager Parker and Parks and Recreation Director Johnston gave a recap of the sign and street art. 
Councilman Hines asked on the status of the Multi-Purpose site. Assistant Town Manager Williams not 
he had a couple conversations, however, no conclusion or gain had been reached. 
 

89



 

Page 14 of 14 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 
 
1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – Monday, September 21, 2020 - 7 p.m. - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. 
2. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 6:30 pm. 
3. Board of Adjustment Meeting – Tuesday, September 22, 2020 - 7 p.m. - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: None. 
 
Councilman Moore: Meeting tomorrow on fair election districts. Winterville is split and we do not get fair 
representation. Also, NCDOT needs to cut grass on their roads. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: Mid-East Commission is offering grant programs; businesses need to reach 
out. Asked that a letter be sent to Suddenlink asking them to be more supportive to parents and citizens. 
Councilman Hines asked if they had contacted their School Board Member? Councilman Moore noted 
that we get a bill to establish Town internet. 
 
Councilman Smith: He noted he had the same problems and poor service with Suddenlink. 
 
Councilman Moye: Having a forum or large group not possible currently. Is a Forum not the same as 
Human Relations? Town Manager Parker noted a Forum is a stand-alone event. Human Relations 
Council ongoing. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson said it would be hard to control numbers at a Forum, possibly 
hold one with representatives from interested groups. Councilman Moye said things must get better. 
Councilman Smith said it would be hard to have forum at this time, things will get better. Councilman 
Moore said a Vaccine is the answer. 
 
Councilman Hines: None. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:05 pm. 
 
 

Adopted this the 12th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

90



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Charge the tax collector with collection of the 2020-2021 Tax Levy. 

Action Requested: Charge the Tax Collector. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The State of North Carolina requires that each year the Tax Collector be charged with the collection of the 

tax levy for taxes. This year the levy is $ $3,790,227.70. 

Budgetary Impact: $3,790,227.70. 

Recommendation: Charge the Tax Collector with collection of the 2020-2021 Tax Levy. 

 

91



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Tax Settlement 2019-2020. 

Action Requested: Accept the Tax Settlement for 2019-2020 Fiscal Year. 

Attachment: Certified Tax Settlement. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The State of North Carolina requires that each year the Tax Collector of a given municipality provide a 

settlement to the Governing Board. The settlement statement gives the Town Council a look at the collection, 

discoveries, and adjustment for the previous year 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Accept the Tax Settlement. 

 

92



93



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Resolution of Reimbursement. 

Action Requested: Adopt the Resolution. 

Attachment: Resolution of Reimbursement 20-R-101. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The resolution of reimbursement allows the Town to begin making purchases while funding sources are 

being obtained. This is a standard procedure that is often used to keep projects on schedule. It is also 

required by the IRS for this type of situation. The amount being finance is $1,162,673. This is for the new 

ERP Software, $496,000, Nissan Pathfinder $26,000, Street Sweeper $260,000, Grass Vac Truck $220,000, 

and Knuckle Boom Truck $160,000 

Budgetary Impact: The estimated annual debt service will be $176,312 the 2021-2022 FY. 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 20-R-101. 

 

94



 Resolution No. 20-R-101 

 
Resolution 

 
Town of Winterville, North Carolina 

Declaration of Official Intent to Reimburse 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Town of Winterville, NC does hereby adopt the following 
declaration (the “Declaration”) of official intent to reimburse. 
 

This declaration (the “Declaration”) is made pursuant to the requirements of the United States 
Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 and is intended to constitute a Declaration of Official Intent to 
Reimburse under such Treasury Regulations Section. 
 

The Undersigned is authorized to declare the official intent of the Town of Winterville, North 
Carolina (the “Issuer”) with respect to the matters contained herein. 
 

1. Expenditures to be Incurred. The Issuer has incurring expenditures (the “expenditures”) 
for the purchase of a Nissan Pathfinder, Street Sweeper, Grass/Leaf Vac Truck, Knuckle 
Boom Truck, and ERP Software.  

 
2. Plan of Finance. The Insurer intends to finance the cost of the project with the proceeds of 

debt to be issued by the Issuer (the “Borrowing”) the interest on which is to be excluded 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
3. Maximum Principle Amount of Debt to be Issued. The maximum principle amount of the 

borrowing to be incurred by the Issuer to finance the equipment and vehicles is $1,162,673. 
 

4. Declaration of Official Intent to Reimburse. The issuer hereby declares its official intent to 
reimburse itself with the proceeds of the Borrowing for any of the Expenditures incurred by 
its prior to the issuance of the Borrowing. 

 
 

Adopted this the 12th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

95



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020 Street Improvements Project Engineering Contract Amendment. 

Action Requested: Approval of Contract Amendment. 

Attachment: Original Engineering Proposal/Letter Agreement. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 10/6/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/6/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Council previously agreed to modifying the project from a mill and overlay of Milton Drive to an undercut and 

full rebuild. The engineering contract was originally structured as hourly for the Construction Phase services 

with an estimated amount of $10,000. In the contract, the $10,000 hourly amount estimated was based on 

the following: 

a) Attend Preconstruction Conference and prepare written minutes for distribution to Owner and 

Contractor. 

b) Provide periodic inspection of the street and storm drainage improvements (estimated at 10 site visits). 

c) Review Shop Drawing submittals. 

d) Review Contractor Pay Requests (estimated at 2 pay requests). 

e) Attend the final inspections for the project (1 pre-final inspection with the Contractor and 1 final 

inspection with the Owner and Contractor). 

 

The frequency and duration of onsite observation has increased accordingly to accommodate the full 

reconstruction of Milton Drive. The Engineer has reached the original estimated amount. Based on the 

Contractor’s current work progress, the Engineer estimates an additional fee of approximately $10,000 to 

complete the project under current conditions. 

Budgetary Impact: The Powell Bill Fund has sufficient funds to cover the cost of the Engineering contract 
amendment. 

Recommendation: Approval of Contract Amendment with Ark Consulting Group. 

 

96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: October 12, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Adopt the Capital Project Budget Ordinance for the Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. 

Action Requested: Adopt the Capital Project Budget Ordinance. 

Attachment: Capital Project Budget Ordinance 20-CPBO-101. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 10/5/2020 ☒ TM: 10/7/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 10/7/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town has been awarded a grant in the amount of $1,974,200. This loan amount is being financed the 

NCDEQ (North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. This also includes $500,000 in debt 

forgiveness. It also includes a 0% interest rate. The project includes rehabilitation and relocation of three 

major sewer pump stations. They are Chapman Street replacement, Church Street Upgrades, Robinson 

Heights Electrical system, and Winterville Crossing Electrical system replacement. 

Budgetary Impact: The sewer fund will have to cover the annual debt service payment for this loan in the 
amount of $73,710.00 annually for 20 years. 

Recommendation: Adopt Capital Project Budget Ordinance 20-CBPO-101. 

 

109



Capital Project Budget Ordinance No. 20-O-101 

 

 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE 
PUMPSTATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, that pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project 
budget ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 

Section 1: The project authorization is for design, relocation, and upfitting of existing pump stations that 
are outdated and dilapidated. The pump stations include Chapman Street, Robinson Heights, and 
Winterville Crossing. Funding for this project is provided by loan proceeds from the North Carolina 
Department of Environmental Quality. 
 

Section 2: The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 
 

 Construction $ 1,337,200 
 Contingency $ 134,000 

Engineering Cost $ 542,500 
  $ 2,013,700 
 

Section 3: The following revenue is anticipated to be available for this project: 
 

 Debt Service Proceeds – NCDEWQ $ 1,974,200 
 Sewer Fund Contribution - $ 39,500 
  $ 2,013,700 
 

Section 4: The finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project Fund sufficient 
detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the financing agreements. 
 

Section 5: Funds may be advanced from the Storm water Fund or from the General Fund for the 
purpose of making payments that are due. 
 

Section 6: The Finance Director is directed to report, on a monthly basis, the financial status of each 
project element in Section 2 and on the total revenues received or claimed. 
 
Section 7: Copies of this capital project budget ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, 
Governing Board, Finance Director, and Town Manager (Budget Officer) to be kept on file by them for 
their direction in the disbursement of funds. 
 
 

Adopted this 12th day of October 2020 
 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

110


	00_20201012_Agenda
	06_1a_PH_Abstract_Eli's_Ridge_Annex_Draftv2
	06_1b_PH_Annex_Petition_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1c_PH_Annex Map_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1d_PH_Legal_Description_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1e_Certificate of Sufficiency_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1f_PH_Notice_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1g_PH_Adjacent_Owners_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1h_PH_Address_Labels_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_1i_Ordinance_20-O-101_Eli's_Ridge_PH_1_&_3_Annex
	06_2a_PH_Abstract_Davenport_Rezoning_PHv2
	06_2b_PH_Rezoning_Application_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2c_PH_Rezoning_Map_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2d_PH_Legal Description_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2e_PH_Notice_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2f_PH_Adjacent_Owners_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2g_PH_ Address_Labels_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2h_Staff Report_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_2i_Ordinance_20-O-102_Davenport_Rezoning_PH
	06_3a_Consent_Abstract_FA Rezoning_Set_PHv2
	06_3b_PH_Rezoning_Application_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	2020-08-06 - Revised Rezoning Application.pdf
	OWNERSHIP INFORMATION:
	PROPERTY INFORMATION
	ZONING REQUEST


	06_3c_PH_Rezoning_Map_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3d_PH_Legal_Description_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3e_PH_Notice_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3f_PH_Adjacent_Owners_Notice_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3g_PH_Address_Labels_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3h_Staff_Report_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_3i_Ordinance_20-O-103_F&A_Rezoning_PH
	06_4a_Consent_Abstract_All_Dunn_Taxicab_Set_PHv2
	06_4b_All_Dunn_Transport_Application
	06_4c_PH_Advertisement_Taxicab_Franchise_Dunn
	06_4d_Certificate_of_Convenience_and_Necessity_Draft
	06_4e_Taxicab_Regulations_Ordinance_Chapter_113
	08_1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	08_1b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20200914_DRAFT
	08_2a_Consent_Abstract_Tax_Charges_20-21v2
	08_3a_Consent_Abstract_Tax_Settlement_19-20v2
	08_3b_2019-2020_Tax_Settlement
	08_4a_Consent_Abstract_Reimbursement_Resolutionv2
	08_4b_Resolution_of_Reimbursement_20-R-101
	09_1a_Old_Abstract_ARK_Eng_Amendv2
	09_1b_Engagement_Letter_20191122
	Signature
	Attachment 1

	10_1a_New_Abstract_CPBO_Sewer_Rehab_19-20v2
	10_1b_CPBO_Sewer_Rehab_Project_#3_20-CPBO-101



